
Planning & Zoning Board 
August 16, 2021

7:00 P.M.  
WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. WELCOME.

III. EXCUSED ABSENCES.

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.

1. JULY - REGULAR MEETING.

VI. NEW BUSINESS.

1. FINAL PLAT - HOLLY GROVE, SECTION 2

VII. REPORTS FROM STAFF.

VIII. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS.

IX. ADJOURN. 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the 
meeting.  (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 



 

Page 1 of 28 
 

 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
MONDAY, JULY 19, 2021 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Planning and Zoning Board met on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall Assembly Room, 
with Chairman Gregory Monroe presiding. The following were present: 

 
Gregory Monroe, Chairman 

Douglas Kilian, Vice Chairman 
Peggy Cliborne, Member 

Margie Crawford, Member 
Rondy Fleming, Member 

Darlene Gardner, Member 
Michael Weldin, Member 

Tucker Moore, Alternate Member 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Haleigh Robinson, Planning Intern 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Monroe called the meeting to order. 
 
WELCOME: Chairman Monroe welcomed all Board members and the public to the meeting. 
 
EXCUSED ABSENCES: There were no excused absences for the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion by Vice Chairman Kilian and second by Member Cliborne to approve the Agenda with 
notation form Planning Director Jones. Motion carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of the June 21, 2021 meeting presented for approval. 
 
Motion by Vice Chairman Kilian Member and second by Member Weldin to approve the June 21, 
2021 minutes as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS: 
 
Member Gardner arrived at the meeting. 
 
1. Election of Officers (Chair and Vice Chair). 
 
Motion by Member Cliborne and second by Vice Chairman Kilian to elect Gregory Monroe as 
Chairman. Motion carried unanimously, 8-0. 
 



 

Page 2 of 28 
 

Motion by Member Cliborne and second by Member Weldin to elect Douglas Kilian as Vice 
Chairman. Motion carried unanimously, 8-0. 
 
Both thanked the Board for their support. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Preliminary Plat – Eleven at Main: Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation. 
 

 
 

 
 



 

Page 3 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 4 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 5 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 6 of 28 
 

 
 
Planning Director Jones ask for any questions. Dale Britt , the developer, Richie Brown with Stroud 
Engineering were present and available for any questions. Discussion took place with the developer, 
engineer, staff, and the Board. 
 
Public Comment Session: No comments were received. 
 
Chairman Monroe ask for further questions. There being none, what is the pleasure of the Board? 
 
Motion by Member Fleming and second by Member Moore to approve the Preliminary Plat of 
Eleven at Main as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 8-0. 
 
2. Rezoning Request – Sutton Capital Group, LLC (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386): Planning Director 

Jones gave the following presentation. 
 

 



 

Page 7 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 8 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 9 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 10 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 11 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 12 of 28 
 

 
 
Planning Director Jones ask for any questions. The project engineer, Scott Anderson with ARK 
Engineering was available. He gave comments relative to the proposed development. Discussion took 
place with the engineer, staff, and the Board. 
 
Public Comment Session: No written comments were received. Judy Bowen and Kevin Little gave 
comments relative to increased traffic and housing density concerns of the rezoning request. 
 
Chairman Monroe ask for further questions. There being none, what is the pleasure of the Board? 
 
Motion by Vice Chairman Kilian and second by Member Cliborne to approve the Rezoning 
Request of Sutton Capital Group, LLC (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386): as presented. Member 
Weldin opposed. Motion carried, 7-1. 
 
3. Rezoning Request – Aquatic Holdings, LLC: Planning Director Jones gave the following 

presentation. 
 

 



 

Page 13 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 14 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 15 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 16 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 17 of 28 
 

 
Planning Director Jones ask for any questions. Discussion took place with staff and the Board. 
 
Public Comment Session: No comments were received. 
 
Chairman Monroe ask for further questions. There being none, what is the pleasure of the Board? 
 
Motion by Member Fleming and second by Member Weldin to approve the Rezoning Request of 
Aquatic Holdings, LLC as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 8-0. 
 
4. Rezoning Request – Alfred Martin McLawhorn-William Farkas: Planning Director Jones gave the 

following presentation. 
 

 
 

 
 



 

Page 18 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 19 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 20 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 21 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 22 of 28 
 

 
Planning Director Jones ask for any questions. The Carl Parker, project engineer is available for any 
questions. Discussion took place with the engineer, staff, and the Board. 
 
Public Comment Session: No written comments were received. Eddie and Teresa Carraway gave 
comments relative to the rezoning request and their adjoining property. 
 
Chairman Monroe ask for further questions. There being none, what is the pleasure of the Board? 
 
Motion by Member Crawford and second by Member Gardner to approve the Rezoning Request 
of Alfred Martin McLawhorn-William Farkas as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 8-0. 
 
5. Rezoning Request – Pitt County Farms, LLC. Planning Director Jones gave the following 

presentation. 
 

 
 

 
 



 

Page 23 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 24 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 25 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Page 26 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 
Planning Director Jones ask for any questions. Malpass Engineering, the project engineer is available 
for any questions. Discussion took place with the engineer, staff, and the Board. 
 
Public Comment Session: No comments were received. 
 
Chairman Monroe ask for questions. There being none, what is the pleasure of the Board? 
 
Motion by Member Gardner and second by Member Fleming to approve the Rezoning Request 
of Pitt County Farms, LLC as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 8-0. 
 
REPORTS FROM STAFF: 
 
Chairman Monroe ask for reports from staff. Planning Director Jones gave the following report: 
 



 

Page 27 of 28 
 

 
 
COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
Chairman Monroe ask if there were any comments from members of the Board. 
 
Vice Chairman Kilian asked the status and progress: Eli's Ridge. Planning Director Jones noted that the 
area is ready for power and infrastructure and construction should start shortly. 
 



 

Page 28 of 28 
 

ADJOURN: 
 
Chairman Monroe requested a motion to adjourn. 
 
Motion by Member Fleming and second by Member Weldin to adjourn the meeting. Motion 
carried unanimously, 8-0.  Meeting adjourned at 8:14 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 16th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 

  
Gregory Monroe, Chairman 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 



 

Town of Winterville 
Planning and Zoning 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: August 16, 2021 
Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Holly Grove, Section 2 – Final Plat 

Action Requested: Approval of Final Plat.  

Attachments: Final Plat  

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 8/11/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM         Final        

Supporting Documentation 
Holly Grove, Section 2 – Final Plat: 
 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road. 

 

Parcel Numbers:  85535, 07841 

 

Site Data:  33 Lots, 13.61 Acres 

 

Zoning District:  R – 12.5 CD 

 

 The Winterville Technical Review Committee approved the Final Plat on August 3, 2021. 

 

Budgetary Impact:  N/A 

Recommendation:  Recommend Approval Final Plat  

 



10' X 70'
SITE TRIANGLE
(TYP.)

PARCEL 68533
BROWN
DB 1939, P 319
MB 62, P 195

18A

PARCEL 85588
CAVINESS AND CATES
DB 4055, P 426
MB 84, P 89

HOLLY GROVE
SECTION 1

60' PUBLIC R/W   32' B/B
GABLE END COURT

12,560 S.F.

9. THE DESIGNATION OVER WATER, SEWER, DRAINAGE, AND
ELECTRIC LINES ARE FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE ESTABLISHING THE
WIDTH OF SAID EASEMENTS. THE EASEMENTS SHOWN ARE NOT
EXCLUSIVE AND WILL PERMIT THE FUTURE INSTALLATION OF
WATER, SANITARY SEWER, DRAINAGE, AND ELECTRIC LINES WITHIN
THOSE DESIGNATED WIDTHS.
10. NO BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, OR OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, MATERIALS,
AND SURFACES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PRINCIPAL AND
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND ADDITIONS OR APPURTENANCES THERETO,
SIGNAGE, FENCES, WALLS, MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT, CANOPIES, ANTENNAS,
MASTS, AERIALS, MONUMENTS, LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS, FILL MATERIALS,
DEBRIS, SOLID WASTE CONTAINERS, MAIL RECEPTACLES AND IMPERVIOUS
SURFACES, SHALL ENCROACH WITHIN ANY DEDICATED EASEMENT WITHOUT
PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE.
11. ALL UTLITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS ARE CENTERED ON LINES AS
INSTALLED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
12. BMP MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT MUST BE RECORDED BEFORE APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT.

THIS IS EVIDENCE THAT THIS
SUBDIVISION WAS MADE AT THE REQUEST OF

__________________________________________
SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED TO BEFORE
ME THIS _____DAY OF __________________,2021.

___________________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC
MY COMMISION EXPIRES:____________________

OWNERS STATEMENT

1. WATER MAINS AND SERVES HAVE 10' UTILITY EASEMENTS
CENTERED ON LINES AS INSTALLED INCLUDING THOSE EXTENDING
INTO SECTION2.
2. SANITARY SEWER MAINS AND SERVICES HAVE 20' UTILITY EASEMENTS
CNETERED ON LINES AS INSTALLED INCLUDING THOSE EXTENDING
INTO SECTION 2.
3. SANITARY SEWER MAINS LESS THAN 6' DEEP HAVE A 20' UTILTIY
EASEMENT CENTERED ON SEWER LINES AS INSTALLED.
4. SANITARY SEWER MAINS 6'-15' HAVE A 30' UTILITY
EASEMENT CENTERED ON SEWER LINES AS INSTALLED.
5. SANITARY SEWER MAINS GREATER THAN 15' DEEP HAVE A 40'
EASEMENT CENTERED ON SEWER LINE AS INSTALLED.

N 08°37'07" W   190.55' TOTAL

80
.00

'

TIE

N 08°37'07" W   162.19' TOTAL

N 14°01'28" W   179.84' TOTAL

141.83'

157.88'

N 08°37'07" W   180.72' TOTAL

169.80'

160.44'

80
.00

'

80
.00

'

N 08°37'07" W   156.52' TOTAL

N 08°37'07" W   196.11' TOTAL

136.52'

173.26'

65.38'

TIE

80.28'

78.94'

N 
76

°1
9'4

5"
 E

N 09°43'47" W

S 79°36'46" E

113.40' TOTAL

N 
38

°4
9'3

6"
 E

N 31°44'32" W163.53'

12
8.

00
'

L2

65
.9

2'

N 
38

°4
9'3

6"
 E

88
.6

7' 
TO

TA
L L1

N 51°10'24" W
129.25'

80
.00

'

60
.00

'

N 08°37'07" W

N 08°37'07" W

157.00'

157.00'

61
.35

'

80
.00

'

80
.00

'

C2
0

C19

N 
71

°4
6'2

1"
 E

56
.33

' T
OT

AL
L7

55
.57

'

C2

C1

66.18'

L3

L6

L5

L4

N 
70

°3
7'5

3"
 E

51
.52

' T
OT

AL

80
.00

'

80
.00

'

36
.91

'

L1
2L1

1

L9
L8

L1
0

N 
41

°1
0'1

1"
 E

S 48°45'24" E   1009.94' TOTAL

N 30°29'27" W   168.63'

N 48°44'16" W   107.76' TOTAL
81.78'

157.00'
N 08°37'07" W

N 08°37'07" W

157.00'

N 08°37'07" W
N 08°37'07" W

157.00'

157.00'

157.00'

80
.00

'

80
.00

'
S 81

°22
'53

" W
   5

82
.00

' T
OTA

L

N 08°37'07" W   168.04'

N 81
°22

'53
" E

   5
84

.11
' T

OTA
L

N 81
°22

'53
" E

   5
68

.43
' T

OTA
L

80
.00

'

80
.00

'
80

.00
'

80
.00

'

80
.50

'

11
2.3

6'
80

.00
'

80
.00

'

L1
8

S 69°41'23" E

82.06'

77
.96

'

L1
7

L16L15

L1
4L1

3

S 48°44'16" E   189.00' TOTAL
117.38'71.62'

L1
9

C8

L2
0

N 
53

°5
1'3

7"
 E

21
5.5

2'

L22

N 26°10'37" E   216.13' TOTAL
C23

S 26°10'37" W
   242.83' TOTAL

S 63°49'24" E

157.00'

80.00'

80.58'
N 26°10'37" E 

N 87°13'37" W
 

80.00'
S 26°10'37" W

80.73'

S 63°49'24" E

S 63°49'24" E

N 26°10'33" E   160.00' TOTAL

17
6.

84
'

L24

42
.00

'

157.00'

80.00'
157.00'

80.00'

80.00'

82.83'

S 63°49'24" E

S 26°35'51" W
   334.89' TOTAL

S 63°49'24" E

154.83'

80.59'

155.43'

55.27' S 63°49'24" E

95.08'

156.02'

80.28'

S 71°43'34" E

159.46'

C18

C17

L23

N 
41

°1
0'1

1"
 E

N 48°49'49" W   104.47' 

80.00'

30.99'

N 
41

°1
0'1

1"
 E

15
6.

63
'

C22

N 
20

°3
3'0

0"
 E

N 08°36'57" W

15
6.4

6'

42
.76

'

C12

C21

73.49'

80.71'

C14
C13

23.76'

S 48°49'49" E   104.47' 

N 
41

°1
0'1

1"
 E

14
3.

86
'

95.00'

C11

13
0.

07
'

C10

C925.98'

C4

C3

N 
41

°1
0'1

1"
 E

17
5.

28
'

80.00'

N 82
°35

'12
" E

N 
56

°5
3'5

6"
 E

16
7.4

2'

15
6.

43
'

140.87'111.61'

C16
C15

80.00' L21

67
.35

'

N 27°59'23" W   226.13'

N 21°32'41" W   191.97'

20' 
20' FIRE APPARATUS

ACCESS ROAD EASEMENT

C5

70
.8

6'

269.60'

N 
41

°1
4'3

6"
 E

C7C6

S 48°45'24" E   198.70' (TIE)

N 
56

°4
9'1

9"
 E

   
97

.35
' T

OT
AL 30
.00

' 152.85'

C1   CH=S 67-07-00 W    64.68'   R=210.00'
C2   CH=N 78-40-42 E     19.81'   R=210.00'
C3   CH=S 34-13-26 E     60.15'   R=120.00'
C4   CH=S 30-50-09 W    38.61'   R=25.00'
C5   CH=S 06-28-01 W    98.54'   R=60.00'
C6   CH=N 78-44-43 W    76.46'   R=60.00'
C7   CH=N 07-30-09 W    62.99'   R=60.00'
C8   CH=N 12-17-25 W    29.70'   R=25.00'
C9   CH=N 37-28-03 W    70.40'   R=180.00'
C10 CH=N 17-04-38 W    56.93'   R=180.00'
C11 CH=N 41-14-13 W    27.41'   R=25.00'
C12 CH=N 73-49-24 W    4.87'     R=210.00'
C13 CH=N 61-53-01 W    82.12'   R=210.00'
C14 CH=N 49-43-08 W    6.52'     R=210.00'
C15 CH=N 40-57-56 W    35.58'   R=130.00'
C16 CH=N 20-15-27 W    57.80'   R=130.00'
C17 CH=N 05-25-49 E     57.80'   R=130.00'
C18 CH=N 22-13-32 E     17.92'   R=130.00'
C19 CH=N 01-16-36 W    38.24'   R=25.00'
C20 CH=N 65-00-16 E     84.61'   R=150.00'
C21 CH=S 83-30-39 E     78.19'   R=150.00'
C22 CH=S 58-36-57 E     50.99'   R=150.00'
C23 CH=S 11-19-36 E     85.23'   R=70.00'

L1   N 38-49-36 E     22.75'
L2   S 79-36-46 E     47.22'
L3   N 14-01-28 W    21.96'   
L4   N 70-37-53 E     30.25'
L5   N 08-37-07 W    20.36'
L6   N 70-37-53 E     21.27'
L7   N 61-04-55 E     24.22'
L8   N 71-46-21 E     19.42'
L9   N 08-37-07 W    20.28'
L10 N 75-07-59 E     57.13'
L11 N 76-19-45 E     4.07'
L12 N 08-37-07 W    20.75'
L13 S 69-41-23 E     2.68'
L14 N 08-37-07 W    22.85'
L15 N 80-39-05 E     8.18'
L16 N 08-37-07 W    20.00'
L17 N 80-39-05 E     11.01'
L18 N 72-04-58 E     54.47'
L19 N 72-04-58 E     15.95'
L20 N 72-04-58 E     35.73'
L21 S 26-29-33 W    27.91'
L22 S 26-29-33 W    14.50'
L23 S 26-37-11 W    57.92'
L24 S 23-37-11 E     40.90'

HOLLY GROVE
SECTION 1

PARCEL 85559
CAVINESS AND CATES
DB 4071, P 670
MB 84, P 89

TAX PARCELS 07840, 07841, AND 84395.

(252)714-7374
362 SECOND STREET,
AYDEN, NC, 28513

DATE: 7/06/21
SCALE: 1 INCH EQUALS 100 FEET.

REFERENCE: DEED BOOK 3636, PAGES 631-636 OF THE PITT COUNTY
                        REGISTER OF DEEDS.

100 75 50 25 0 100 200 300

FINAL PLAT

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 100'

JAMES L. EDWARDS LAND SURVEYING

PHONE: (252) 725-5375

ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 235
                   MOREHEAD CITY, NC, 28557

OWNER: CAROLINA EASTERN HOMES, LLC

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT COUNTY, NC

SECTION 2

HOLLY GROVE SUBDIVISION

1. ALL REAS CALCULATED BY COORDINATE GEOMETRY.
2. A 5' UTILITY EASEMENT WILL BE RESERVED INSIDE ALL SIDE,
REAR, AND FRONT PROPERTY LINES. SEE DETAIL "A".
3. NEW 5/8" IRON STAKES TO BE SET AT ALL LOT CORNERS UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.
4. THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARDOUS
AREA AS DETERMINED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANGEMENT
AGENCY, REFERENC: FIRM 3720467400J, DATED JAN. 2, 2004.
5. HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
MAINTENANCE OF COMMON AREA AND STORMWATER POND.
6. NO IRON STAKES ARE SET IN CENTERLINE OF DITCHES UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.
7. MAXIMUM BUILT UPON AREA ON EACH LOT IS NOT EXCEED 4,854 S.F.
8. NO COMBUSTIBLES SHALL BE BROUGHT ON SITE OF THE HOMES
BEING CONSTRUCTED UNTIL THE WATER/HYDRANTS ARE AVAILABLE
FOR FIRE PROTECTION IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY, AS
DRAWN IN THE PRELIMINARY PLAT.

______________________________________________
JAMES L. EDWARDS, PLS.   L-4867

DEED BOOK 3636, PAGE 631
DEED BOOK 3434, PAGE 663

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE LAST
INSTRUMENT(S) IN THE CHAIN OF TITLE(S)
OF THIS PROPERTY AS RECORDED IN THE
PITT COUNTY REGISTRY AT GREENVILLE, 
NORTH CAROLINA IS:

SOURCE OF TITLE

10' X 70'
SITE TRIANGLE
(TYP.)

50'
MBL

13,765 S.F.

GENERAL NOTES:

17,179 S.F.1

PARCEL 85560
CAVINESS AND CATES
DB 4055, P 426
MB 84, P 89

2

GRADE-.3'
OLD RIBBON

5/8"
EIS

20' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

13,712 S.F.
4

3

25'MBL

60' PUBLIC R/W   VARIABLE B/BHOLLY GROVE DRIVE

12,560 S.F.

18,386 S.F.

62
41

42

15' 
15' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

60
' P

UBLIC
 R/W

   3
2' 

B/B

HOLL
Y GROVE DRIVE

12,560 S.F.
43

44
5

CURVE TABLE

R/W

R/W

NIS = NEW #5 REBAR
NPS = NO POINT SET
EIP = EXISTING IRON PIPE
PP = POWER POLE
EIS = EXISTING IRON STAKE
B/B = BACK OF CURB TO BACK OF CURB
R/W = RIGHT OF WAY
NPK = NEW PK NAIL
CLR INT = CENTERLINE ROAD INTERSECTION
MBL = MINIMUM BUILDING LINE
ERRS = EXISTING RAILROAD SPIKE

= FENCE

TYPICAL LOT UTILITY 
AND DRAINAGE 
EASEMENT DETAIL N.T.S.

60' R/W 32' B/B PUBLIC
PUBLIC STREET

LINE TABLE

25'MBL

= NOT TO SCALE

= OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

LEGEND:

17,577 S.F.

PARCEL 56080
FIELDS
DB 3884, P 270
DB 2750, P 778

10' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT
5' EACH SIDE OF PROPERTY LINE

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT9

15,525 S.F.

20' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

7
20'

14,889 S.F.
6

13,939 S.F.

13,006 S.F.

8

22,938 S.F.
11

15' 

17,292 S.F.
10

TOTAL AREA IN TRACT = 13.61 ACRES
TOTAL AREA EXCLUDING R/W = 11.21 ACRES
(R/W = 2.40 ACRES)
NUMBER OF LOTS CREATED = 33
AREA IN COMMON = 0 
AREA IN PARKS, RECREATION AREAS, AND THE LIKE = 0
LINEAR FEET IN STREETS = 2.290 L.F.
ZONING CLASSIFICATION = R-12.5
AVERAGE LOT SIZE = 14,547 S.F.

PARCEL 04819
LE & LAM PROPERTIES LLC
DB 4079, P 773
MB 45, P 44

5' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

SITE DATA:

PARCEL 69938
HAIGHT
DB 1937, P 1
MB 62, P 195

PARCEL 70737
POTTER
DB 2454, P 587
MB 63, P 187

20B
PARCEL 68536
ARTIS
DB 3962, P 839
MB 63, P 187

PARCEL 70736
ARGUDIN
DB 2111, P 617
MB 63, P 187

PARCEL 68537
MCLAWHORN
DB 1887, P 438
MB 61, P 147

22B 22A 21B 21A

19,709 S.F.
12

PARCEL 68536
BRIDGERS
DB 1970, P 551
MB 62, P 195

PARCEL 68534
ANDERSON
DB 2222, P 362
MB 62, P 195

PARCEL 68537
BRYANT
DB 2971, P 770
MB 61, P 147

PARCEL 68535
SPIVEY
DB 1955, P 347
MB 61, P 147

20A 19B 19A 18B

13

EASEMENT NOTES:

25'MBL

PARCEL 15006
CHAPEL HILL FOUNDATION
REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS INC
DB 3448, P 378
MB 15, P 21

PARCEL 85561
LEAHY
DB 4063, P 330
MB 84, P 89

PARCEL 85584
BATES
DB 4068, P 503
MB 84, P 89

12,560 S.F.45

HOLLY GROVE
SECTION 1

13. EITHER TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT
STREET SIGNAGE MUST BE INSTALLED.
DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE OF
THIS SUBDIVISION AS IS REQUIRED BY
THE 2012NC FIRE CODE.
14. DRAINAGE SWALES TO BE 
MAINTAINED BY HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION.
15. LOTS 22 AND 23 ARE THE SMALLEST LOTS (12,501 S.F.)

__________________________________________________
MAYOR

APPROVED FOR RECORDING BY THE TOWN
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, N.C.
ON THIS THE ____DAY OF ______________________,
2021 PURSUIANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF SECTION
154.13 ON THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS.
MUST BE RECORDED WITHIN THIRTY(30) DAYS
OF THIS DATE.

CERTIFICATE OF FINAL APPROVAL

PARCEL 85579
CAVINESS AND
CATES
DB 3951, P 60
MB 84, P 89

PARCEL 85583
CAVINESS AND
CATES
DB 3992, P 119
MB 84, P 89

PARCEL 85585
CAVINESS AND 
CATES
DB 3992, P 109
MB 84, P 89

PARCEL 85586
CAVINESS AND CATES
DB 4055, P 426
MB 84, P 89

VARIABLE W
IDTH PUBLIC R/W

 B/B
DEARING COURT

12,560 S.F.

57

59

60

53

GRADE-.3'
OLD RIBBON

5/8"
EIS

ATTEST:___________________________________________

SIGNED:___________________________________________

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE(S)
THIS PLAT AND ALLOTMENT TO BE ITS
FREE ACT AND DEED, AND HEREBY DEDICATE(S)
TO PUBLIC USE AS STREETS, PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS,
OPEN SPACES AND EASEMENTS FOREVER
ALL AREAS AS SHOWN OR SO INDICATED
ON SAID PLAT.

DEDICATION

GRADE-.3'
OLD RIBBON

5/8"
EIS

________________________________________________
JAMES L. EDWARDS, PLS. L-4867

I, JAMES L. EDWARDS, PLS. CERTIFY THAT THIS
MAP WAS DRAWN FROM AN ACTUAL FIELD 
SURVEY MADE BY ME, THAT THE RATIO OF 
PRECISION AS CALCULATED BY LATITUDES AND 
DEPARTURES IS 1:10,000, THAT THE BOUNDARIES
NOT SURVEYED ARE SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES
PLOTTED FROM DEED INFORMATION SHOWN IN
DEED BOOK N/A, PAGE N/A, THAT THIS MAP WAS
PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS
AMENDED, WITNESS MY HAND AND DEAL THIS 
____DAY OF JULY, 2021. I CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP 
CREATES A SUBDIVISION OF LAND WITIHN A 
COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY THAT HAS AN 
ORDINANCE THAT REGULATES PARCELS OF LAND. 

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY
AND ACCURACY

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF PITT

I_______________________________________________,
REVIEW OFFICER OF PITT COUNTY, CERTIFY
THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATION IS AFFIXED MEETS ALL
STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING.
DATE:__________________________________________

_______________________________________________
REVIEW OFFICER

REVIEW OFFICER

_________________________________________
CHAIRMAN, PLANNING BOARD

_________________________________________
TOWN PLANNER

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT
WAS RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY
THE PLANNING BOARD OF THE TOWN OF 
WINTERVILLE ON THE ______DAY OF
_________________________________, 2021.

PLANNING BOARD

GRADE-.3'
OLD RIBBON

13,169 S.F.

12,501 S.F.

23

3/4"
EIP

STORM DRAINAGE WIDTHS:

12,670 S.F. 13,227 S.F. 13,054 S.F. 12,519 S.F. 14,072 S.F.

25'MBL

HOLLY GROVE
SECTION 1

12,859 S.F.

12,560 S.F.

12,560 S.F.

58

46

47

10' X 70'
SITE TRIANGLE
(TYP.)

25
'MBL

13,782 S.F.
48

49

25'MBL

12,560 S.F.

16,850 S.F.

50

51

52

22

50'MBL

20,385 S.F.

17,889 S.F.

21

20

PARCEL 68530
HICKS
DB 3970, P 36
MB 64, P 69

PARCEL 71068
JONES
DB 3907, P 28
MB 64, P 69

PARCEL 68531
WANG
DB 3988, P 750
MB 62, P 170

PARCEL 69712
BRYANT
DB 3624, P 31
MB 62, P 170

PARCEL 68532
STL 
PROPERTIES 
DB 3884, P 109
MB 61, P 147

PARCEL 68535
FLOYD
DB 2495, P 359
MB 62, P 195

17B 17A 16B 16A 15B 15A

17161514

PARCEL 71066
LEGGETT
DB 2024, P 108
MB 64, P 69

PARCEL 82993
PEREZ
DB 3434, P 422
MB 64, P 69

PARCEL 82994
PEREZ
DB 3434, P 422
MB 64, P 69

14B 14A 13B

1918

15"RCP = 10' EASEMENT
18"RCP = 15' EASEMENT
24"RCP = 15' EASEMENT
30"RCP = 20' EASEMENT
36"RCP = 20' EASEMENT
42"RCP = 25' EASEMENT
48"RCP = 25' EASEMENT
ALL OTHERS ARE 10' WIDE
DITCHES = AS NOTED.

PARCEL 73212
DACEY
DB 3442 P 64
MB 66, P 75

5/8"
EIS

PARCEL 83550
MILLER
DB 3596 P 593
MB 81, P 52

PARCEL 83549
BARTZ
DB 3580 P 212
MB 81, P 52

PARCEL 83548
ZIEMBA
DB 3630 P 340
MB 81, P 52

65

66

67

MB 68, P 118

12,501 S.F.

24

PARCEL 73211
RICKS
DB 2979, P 583
MB 66, P 75

43

44
GRADE-.3'
OLD RIBBON

VICINITY MAP: 1" = 2000'

DocuSign Envelope ID: F21F1B4B-6E78-4E00-8BBB-378FDBC0A992



 
 
 
 
 

2571 RAILROAD ST 
PO BOX 1459 

WINTERVILLE, NC 
28590 

  PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
           BRYAN JONES 
               DIRECTOR                             

 
 
To: Planning and Zoning Board 

 
From: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 
Date: August 2, 2021 

 
Re: Monthly Report 

Please find below a summary of the projects, tasks and issues the Planning Department has been 
working on during the month of July 2021. 
 
ZONING COMPLIANCES Total = 15 YTD (2021) = 130 
New Single-Family Residential 2 32 
Accessory Structures 4 21 
New Business 3 13 
Residential Fence 2 22 
Additions/Pools/Other 4 41 
 
Other Activities/Projects 

  

Technical Review Committee  7/6/2021 TRC met to consider/review the site plan 
for PCC Student Advancement Center 
(approved); Eleven at Main – 
Preliminary Plat  

Greenville Urban Area MPO TAC 
Meeting 

7/14/2021 Transportation Advisory Committee 
(TAC) met to discuss transportation 
priorities for the Urban Area.  Agenda 
included Prioritization Process Review 
and Fast-Track TIP amendment process. 

Planning and Zoning Board 
Meeting 

7/19/2021 Eleven at Main-PP (approved); Sutton 
Capital Group Rezoning (approved); Pitt 
County Farms Rezoning (approved); 
Aquatic Holdings Rezoning (approved); 
Alfred McLawhorn Rezoning (approved) 

Board of Adjustment Meeting  7/20/2021 510 Coventry Court – Special Use Permit 
(approved) 

 


	ADP5239.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brewery Ordinance Amendment. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  12/16/2016
	 Final  12/16/2016
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA856.tmp
	Zoning Ordinance Amendment�(Wine and Craft Beer Store, Microbrewery/Brewpub, & Regional Brewery)
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Microbrewery/ Brewpub
	Microbrewery/ Brewpub
	Microbrewery 
	Special Requirement 23:
	Trollingwood In Greenville, NC  (Microbrewery)
	Hams- Greenville, NC (brew Pub)
	Koi Pond- Rocky Mount, NC (Microbrewery)
	Regional Brewery
	Regional Brewery
	The Duck-Rabbit Craft Brewery- Farmville, NC
	Mother Earth- Kinston, NC
	Contact Stephen Penn for Questions or Details 

	ADPF9C8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Permitted & Conditional Use Workshop Changes to Agricultural-Residential (A-R) District
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7513.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Thad’s Reedy Branch Subdivision. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP534D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 135 Liberty St. Lean-To.  
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP25E9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 447 Cooper Street Accessory Building. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7D8E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 88 Cooper Street & 204 Cross Street- Winterville Machine Works 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB25C.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP392A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6D56.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP172E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC99D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6E29.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3CFE.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Ange Plaza Lot 26 & Revision of Lot 23.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3E28.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Harris Division Tract A Annexation: Villa Grande Annexation of newly proposed section. Annexation Contingent on approval of rezoning and preliminary plat. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7C19.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 3, Revision of Lots 16-26.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPFA4F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Summer Winds, Section 2, Phase 2
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP529D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Holly Grove
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3733.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP454A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPDB9C.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ADP93A4.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPEE2B.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	Prelim Plat - Copper Creek, Sect 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prelim Plat

	2-Prelim Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prelim Plat



	ADP5CA8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase 2
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4160.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ADPBAA9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 4
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP38F3.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Davis Property (parcel 10962) - Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD386.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Worthington Property (parcels 25820, 25758, 80305) - Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4C73.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookstone, Phase 1 – CUD Amendment 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP117A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Tattooing as a Permitted Use in General Business
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP869B.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Holly Grove, Section – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP1379.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase One, Section B – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	2019_06_10_ Villa Grande Phase One Section 'B' Final Plat Prelim Submitted.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Finalplat 2


	ADPFB38.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF691.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Janet Hare and Joan Neitz Property – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC07C.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP9EA9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: E & S Homes – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB779.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC355.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF23A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP5979.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Ange Plaza, Lots 20 & 21 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP486F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Merizio Property – Rezoning Request (3018 Church Street Ext – parcel 68782)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP42B1.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage:
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP894C.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage:
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP908D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Pitt County Shrine Club – Rezoning Request (3100 Church Street Ext – parcel 73685)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP44FE.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 5 – Maintain and improve neighborhood character.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPA65E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: F & A Construction – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB0DC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: F & A Construction – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP919B.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial):
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP103A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance – Proposed Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD8AF.tmp
	ARTICLE 1. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES.
	SECTION A. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.
	SECTION B. FINDINGS OF FACT.
	(1) The flood prone areas within the jurisdiction of the Town of Winterville are subject to periodic inundation which results in loss of life, property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public ...
	(2) These flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains causing increases in flood heights and velocities and by the occupancy in flood prone areas of uses vulnerable to floods or other hazards.

	SECTION C. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE.
	(1) restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, and property due to water or erosion hazards or that result in damaging increases in erosion, flood heights or velocities;
	(2) require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities that serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;
	(3) control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers, which are involved in the accommodation of floodwaters;
	(4) control filling, grading, dredging, and all other development that may increase erosion or flood damage; and
	(5) prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that will unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands.

	SECTION D. OBJECTIVES.
	(1) protect human life, safety, and health;
	(2) minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;
	(3) minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;
	(4) minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions;
	(5) minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and gas mains, electric, telephone, cable and sewer lines, streets, and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas;
	(68) help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood prone areas; and
	(79) ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a Special Flood Hazard Area.


	ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS.
	(a) built on a single chassis;
	(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
	(c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and
	(d) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.
	(a) any correction of existing violations of State or community health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the community code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or
	(b) any alteration of a historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure.

	ARTICLE 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS.
	SECTION A. LANDS TO WHICH THIS ORDINANCE APPLIES.
	SECTION B. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS.
	SECTION D. COMPLIANCE.
	SECTION E. ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.
	SECTION F. INTERPRETATION.
	(a) considered as minimum requirements;
	(b) liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and
	(c) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under State statutes.

	SECTION G. WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY.
	SECTION H. PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.

	ARTICLE 4. ADMINISTRATION.
	SECTION A. DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.
	SECTION B. FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION, PERMIT AND CERTIFICATION
	REQUIREMENTS.
	(1) Application Requirements.  Application for a Floodplain Development Permit shall be made to the Floodplain Administrator prior to any development activities located within Special Flood Hazard Areas.  The following items shall be presented to the ...
	(a) A plot plan drawn to scale which shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following specific details of the proposed floodplain development:
	(i) the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area of development/disturbance; existing and proposed structures, utility systems, grading/pavement areas, fill materials, storage areas, drainage facilities, and other development;
	(ii) the boundary of the Special Flood Hazard Area as delineated on the FIRM or other flood map as determined in Article 3, Section B, or a statement that the entire lot is within the Special Flood Hazard Area;
	(iii) flood zone(s) designation of the proposed development area as determined on the FIRM or other flood map as determined in Article 3, Section B;
	(iv) the boundary of the floodway(s) or non-encroachment area(s) as determined in Article 3, Section B;
	(v) the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) where provided as set forth in Article 3, Section B; Article 4, Section C; or Article 5, Section D;
	(vi) the old and new location of any watercourse that will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed development; and
	(vii) the certification of the plot plan by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer.

	(b) Proposed elevation, and method thereof, of all development within a Special Flood Hazard Area including but not limited to:
	(i) Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the proposed reference level (including basement) of all structures;
	(ii) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential structure in Zone AE, A or AO will be floodproofed; and
	(iii) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any proposed utility systems will be elevated or floodproofed.

	(c) If floodproofing, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65) with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan that include, but are not limited to, installation, exercise, and maintenance of floodproofing measures.
	(d) A Foundation Plan, drawn to scale,, which shall include details of the proposed foundation system to ensure all provisions of this ordinance are met.  These details include but are not limited to:
	(i) The proposed method of elevation, if applicable (i.e., fill, solid foundation perimeter wall, solid backfilled foundation, open foundation on columns/posts/piers/piles/shear walls); and
	(ii) Openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces on walls in accordance with Article 5, Section B(4)(c) when solid foundation perimeter walls are used in Zones A, AO, AE, and A1-30.

	(e) Usage details of any enclosed areas below the lowest floor.
	(f) Plans and/or details for the protection of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems to be located and constructed to minimize flood damage.
	(g) Certification that all other Local, State and Federal permits required prior to floodplain development permit issuance have been received.
	(h) Documentation for placement of Recreational Vehicles and/or Temporary Structures, when applicable, to ensure that the provisions of Article 5, Section B, subsections (6) and (7) of this ordinance are met.
	(i) A description of proposed watercourse alteration or relocation, when applicable, including an engineering report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to properties located both up...

	(2) Permit Requirements.  The Floodplain Development Permit shall include, but not be limited to:
	(a) A description of the development to be permitted under the floodplain development permit.
	(b) The Special Flood Hazard Area determination for the proposed development in accordance with available data specified in Article 3, Section B.
	(c) The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the reference level and all attendant utilities.
	(d) The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the protection of all public utilities.
	(e) All certification submittal requirements with timelines.
	(f) A statement that no fill material or other development shall encroach into the floodway or non-encroachment area of any watercourse, as applicable.
	(g) The flood openings requirements, if in Zones A, AO, AE or A1-30.

	(3) Certification Requirements.
	(a) Elevation Certificates
	(i) An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31) is required after the reference level is established.  Within seven (7) calendar days of establishment of the reference level elevation, it shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodpla...
	(ii) A final as-built Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31) is required after construction is completed and prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy issuance.  It shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a...

	(b) Floodproofing Certificate
	(i) If non-residential floodproofing is used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65), with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan are required ...
	(c) If a manufactured home is placed within Zone A, AO, AE, or A1-30 and the elevation of the chassis is more than 36 inches in height above grade, an engineered foundation certification is required in accordance with  the provisions of Article 5, Sec...
	(d) If a watercourse is to be altered or relocated, a description of the extent of watercourse alteration or relocation; a professional engineer’s certified report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the watercours...
	(e) Certification Exemptions.  The following structures, if located within Zone A, AO, AE or A1-30, are exempt from the elevation/floodproofing certification requirements specified in items (a) and (b) of this subsection:
	(i) Recreational Vehicles meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(6)(a);
	(ii) Temporary Structures meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(7); and
	(iii)     (iii) Accessory Structures less than 150 square feet meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(8).

	(a) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair...
	(b) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building or structure;
	(c) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage; and
	(d) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction requirements of the NC Building Code and this ordinance is required.


	SECTION C. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.
	The Floodplain Administrator shall perform, but not be limited to, the following duties:
	(1) Review all floodplain development applications and issue permits for all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that the requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied.
	(2) Review all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that all necessary Local, State and Federal permits have been received.
	(3) Notify adjacent communities and the North Carolina Department of Crime Control and Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management, State Coordinator for the National Flood Insurance Program prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse, ...
	(4) Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or relocated portion of said watercourse so that the flood-carrying capacity is maintained.
	(5) Prevent encroachments into floodways and non-encroachment areas unless the certification and flood hazard reduction provisions of Article 5, Section F are met.
	(6) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the reference level (including basement) and all attendant utilities of all new and substantially improved structures, in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).
	(7) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which all new and substantially improved structures and utilities have been floodproofed, in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).
	(8) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of all public utilities in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).
	(9) When floodproofing is utilized for a particular structure, obtain certifications from a registered professional engineer or architect in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3) and Article 5, Section B(2).
	(10) Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard Areas, floodways, or non-encroachment areas (for example, where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions...
	(11) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data has not been provided in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any BFE data, along with floodway data or non-encroachment area data available from a Fed...
	(12) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided but no floodway or non-encroachment area data has been provided in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any floodway data or non-encroachme...
	(13) When the lowest floor and the lowest adjacent grade of a structure or the lowest ground elevation of a parcel in a Special Flood Hazard Area is above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), advise the property owner of the option to apply for a Letter of...
	(14) Permanently maintain all records that pertain to the administration of this ordinance and make these records available for public inspection, recognizing that such information may be subject to the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended.
	(15) Make on-site inspections of work in progress.  As the work pursuant to a floodplain development permit progresses, the Floodplain Administrator shall make as many inspections of the work as may be necessary to ensure that the work is being done a...
	(16) Issue stop-work orders as required.  Whenever a building or part thereof is being constructed, reconstructed, altered, or repaired in violation of this ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator may order the work to be immediately stopped.  The sto...
	(17) Revoke floodplain development permits as required.  The Floodplain Administrator may revoke and require the return of the floodplain development permit by notifying the permit holder in writing stating the reason(s) for the revocation.  Permits s...
	(18) Make periodic inspections throughout the Special Flood Hazard Areas within the jurisdiction of the community.  The Floodplain Administrator and each member of his or her inspections department shall have a right, upon presentation of proper crede...
	(19) Follow through with corrective procedures of Article 4, Section D.
	(20) Review, provide input, and make recommendations for variance requests.
	(21) Maintain a current map repository to include, but not limited to, the FIS Report, FIRM and other official flood maps and studies adopted in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B of this ordinance, including any revisions thereto ...
	(22) Coordinate revisions to FIS reports and FIRMs, including Letters of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-Fs) and Letters of Map Revision (LOMRs).

	SECTION D. CORRECTIVE PROCEDURES.
	(1) Violations to be Corrected:  When the Floodplain Administrator finds violations of applicable State and local laws, it shall be his or her duty to notify the owner or occupant of the building of the violation.  The owner or occupant shall immediat...
	(2) Actions in Event of Failure to Take Corrective Action:  If the owner of a building or property shall fail to take prompt corrective action, the Floodplain Administrator shall give the owner written notice, by certified or registered mail to the ow...
	(a) that the building or property is in violation of the floodplain management regulations;
	(b) that a hearing will be held before the Floodplain Administrator at a designated place and time, not later than ten (10) days after the date of the notice, at which time the owner shall be entitled to be heard in person or by counsel and to present...
	(c) that following the hearing, the Floodplain Administrator may issue an order to alter, vacate, or demolish the building; or to remove fill as applicable.

	(3) Order to Take Corrective Action: If, upon a hearing held pursuant to the notice prescribed above, the Floodplain Administrator shall find that the building or development is in violation of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, he or she shall is...
	(4) Appeal:  Any owner who has received an order to take corrective action may appeal the order to the local elected governing body by giving notice of appeal in writing to the Floodplain Administrator and the clerk within ten (10) days following issu...
	(5) Failure to Comply with Order:  If the owner of a building or property fails to comply with an order to take corrective action for which no appeal has been made or fails to comply with an order of the governing body following an appeal, the owner s...

	SECTION E. VARIANCE PROCEDURES.
	(1) The Board of Adjustment as established by the Town of Winterville, hereinafter referred to as the “appeal board”, shall hear and decide requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance.
	(2) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the appeal board may appeal such decision to the Court, as provided in Chapter 7A of the North Carolina General Statutes.
	(3) Variances may be issued for:
	(a) the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon the determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and that the variance is the minimum necessary to...
	(b) functionally dependent facilities if determined to meet the definition as stated in Article 2 of this ordinance, provided provisions of Article 4, Section E(9)(b), (c), and (e) have been satisfied, and such facilities are protected by methods that...
	(c) any other type of development, provided it meets the requirements of this Section.

	(4) In passing upon variances, the appeal board shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified in other sections of this ordinance, and:
	(a) the danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;
	(b) the danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;
	(c) the susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of such damage on the individual owner;
	(d) the importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;
	(e) the necessity to the facility of a waterfront location as defined under Article 2 of this ordinance as a functionally dependent facility, where applicable;
	(f) the availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use;
	(g) the compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;
	(h) the relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain management program for that area;
	(i) the safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;
	(j) the expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and
	(k) the costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, and streets and bridges.

	(5) A written report addressing each of the above factors shall be submitted with the application for a variance.
	(6) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this ordinance, the appeal board may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes and objectives of this ordinance.
	(7) Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the difference between the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) and the elevation to which the structure is to be built and that such construction below the BFE increases r...
	(8) The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the State of North Carolina upon request.
	(9) Conditions for Variances:
	(a) Variances shall not be issued when the variance will make the structure in violation of other Federal, State, or local laws, regulations, or ordinances.
	(b) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway or non-encroachment area if the variance would result in any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge.
	(c) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.
	(d) Variances shall only be issued prior to development permit approval.
	(e) Variances shall only be issued upon:
	(i) a showing of good and sufficient cause;
	(ii) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship; and
	(iii) a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with ex...


	(10) A variance may be issued for solid waste disposal facilities or sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage facilities that are located in Special Flood Hazard Areas provided that all of the following conditi...
	(a) The use serves a critical need in the community.
	(b) No feasible location exists for the use outside the Special Flood Hazard Area.
	(c) The reference level of any structure is elevated or floodproofed to at least the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation.
	(d) The use complies with all other applicable Federal, State and local laws.
	(e) The Town of Winterville has notified the Secretary of the North Carolina Department of Crime Control and Public Safety of its intention to grant a variance at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to granting the variance.



	ARTICLE 5. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION.
	SECTION A. GENERAL STANDARDS.
	(1) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure.
	(2) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.
	(3) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damages.
	(4) Electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding to the R...
	(5) All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system.
	(6) New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters.
	(7) On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding.
	(8) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a structure, which is in compliance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall meet the requirements of “new construction” as contained in this ordinance.
	(98) Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the repair, reconstruction, or replacement of a building or structure existing on the effective date of this ordinance and located totally or partially within the floodway, non-encroachment area, or stream ...
	(109) New solid waste disposal facilities and sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage facilities shall not be permitted, except by variance as specified in Article 4, Section E(10).  A structure or tank for ch...
	(1110) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.
	(1211) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage.
	(1312) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.
	(1413)  All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have received all necessary permits from those governmental agencies for which approval is required by Federal or State law, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution C...

	SECTION B. SPECIFIC STANDARDS.
	(1) Residential Construction.  New construction and substantial improvement of any residential structure (including manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, including basement, elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevatio...
	(2) Non-Residential Construction.  New construction and substantial improvement of any commercial, industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the reference level, including basement, elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protectio...
	(3) Manufactured Homes.
	(a) New and replacement manufactured homes shall be elevated so that the reference level of the manufactured home is no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation, as defined in Article 2 of this ordinance.
	(b) Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, either by certified engineered foundation system, or in accordance with the most current edition of the State o...
	(c) All enclosures or skirting below the lowest floor shall meet the requirements of Article 5, Section B(4).
	(d) An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all residents of all new, substantially improved or substantially damaged manufactured home parks or subdivisions located within flood prone areas. This plan shall be filed with and approved b...

	(4) Elevated Buildings.  Fully enclosed area, of new construction and substantially improved structures, which is below the lowest floor:
	(a) shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but shall only be used for parking of vehicles, building access, or limited storage of maintenance equipment used in connection with the premises.  Access to the enclosed area shall be the minimu...
	(b) shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials at least to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation; and
	(c) shall include, in Zones A, AO, AE, and A1-30, flood openings to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters.  To meet this requirement, the openings must either be certified by a profe...
	(i) A minimum of two flood openings on different sides of each enclosed area subject to flooding;
	(ii) The total net area of all flood openings must be at least one (1) square inch for each square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;
	(iii) If a building has more than one enclosed area, each enclosed area must have flood openings to allow floodwaters to automatically enter and exit;
	(iv) The bottom of all required flood openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above the adjacent grade;
	(v) Flood openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices, provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions; and
	(vi) Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not considered enclosures for regulatory purposes, and, therefore, do not require flood openings.  Masonry or wood underpinning, regardless of structural status, is considered an enclosure and requires flo...


	(5) Additions/Improvements.
	(a) Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures when the addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are:
	(i) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements must be designed to minimize flood damages and must not be any more non-conforming than the existing structure.
	(ii) a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction.

	(b) Additions to post-FIRM structures with no modifications to the existing structure other than a standard door in the common wall shall require only the addition to comply with the standards for new construction.
	(c) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures when the addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are:
	(i) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements only must comply with the standards for new construction.
	(ii) a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction.


	(6) Recreational Vehicles.  Recreational vehicles shall either:
	(a) be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utiliti...
	(b)  meet all the requirements for new construction.

	(7) Temporary Non-Residential Structures.  Prior to the issuance of a floodplain development permit for a temporary structure, the applicant must submit to the Floodplain Administrator a plan for the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurr...
	(a) a specified time period for which the temporary use will be permitted.  Time specified may not exceed three (3) months, renewable up to one (1) year;
	(b) the name, address, and phone number of the individual responsible for the removal of the temporary structure;
	(c) the time frame prior to the event at which a structure will be removed (i.e., minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a hurricane or immediately upon flood warning notification);
	(d) a copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with the entity responsible for physical removal of the structure; and
	(e) designation, accompanied by documentation, of a location outside the Special Flood Hazard Area, to which the temporary structure will be moved.

	(8) Accessory Structures.  When accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc.) are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:
	(a) Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including working, sleeping, living, cooking or restroom areas);
	(b) Accessory structures shall not be temperature-controlled;
	(c) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential;
	(d) Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters;
	(e) Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Section A(1);
	(f) All service facilities such as electrical shall be installed in accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Section A(4); and
	(g) Flood openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided below Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation in conformance with the provisions of Article 5, Section B(4)(c).
	An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150 square feet that satisfies the criteria outlined above does not require an elevation or floodproofing certificate.  Elevation or floodproofing certifications are required for all other accessory st...

	(9) Tanks.  When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:
	(a) Underground tanks.  Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoy...
	(b) Above-ground tanks, elevated.  Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be elevated to or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation on a supporting structure that is designed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement during co...
	(c) Above-ground tanks, not elevated.  Above-ground tanks that do not meet the elevation requirements of Article 5, Section B (2) of this Article shall be permitted in flood hazard areas provided the tanks are designed, constructed, installed, and anc...
	(d) Tank inlets and vents.  Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be:
	(i) At or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the design flood; and
	(ii) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood.


	(10) Other Development.
	(b) Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways and NEAs.  Retaining walls and sidewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance.


	SECTION C. RESERVED.
	SECTION D. STANDARDS FOR FLOODPLAINS WITHOUT ESTABLISHED BASE FLOOD
	ELEVATIONS.
	(1) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements or new development shall be permitted within a distance of twenty (20) feet each side from top of bank or five times the width of the stream, whichever is greater, unless...
	(2) The BFE used in determining the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation shall be determined based on the following criteria:
	(a) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available from other sources, all new construction and substantial improvements within such areas shall also comply with all applicable provisions of this ordinance and shall be elevated or floodproofed in a...
	(c) All subdivision, manufactured home park and other development proposals shall provide Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data if development is greater than five (5) acres or has more than fifty (50) lots/manufactured home sites.  Such Base Flood Elevatio...
	(d) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is not available from a Federal, State, or other source as outlined above, the reference level shall be elevated or floodproofed (nonresidential) to or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation, as define...


	SECTION E. STANDARDS FOR RIVERINE FLOODPLAINS WITH BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS BUT WITHOUT ESTABLISHED FLOODWAYS OR NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS.
	(1) Standards of Article 5, Sections A and B; and

	SECTION F. FLOODWAYS AND NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS.
	Areas designated as floodways or non-encroachment areas are located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article 3, Section B.  The floodways and non-encroachment areas are extremely hazardous areas due to the velocity of floodwaters t...
	(1) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements and other developments shall be permitted unless:
	(a) it is demonstrated that the proposed encroachment would not result in any increase in the flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood, based on hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice a...
	(b) a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) has been approved by FEMA.  A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) must also be obtained upon completion of the proposed encroachment.

	(2) If Article 5, Section F(1) is satisfied, all development shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of this ordinance.
	(3) No manufactured homes shall be permitted, except replacement manufactured homes in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, provided the following provisions are met:
	(a) the anchoring and the elevation standards of Article 5, Section B(3); and
	(b) the no encroachment standard of Article 5, Section F(1).


	SECTION G. STANDARDS FOR AREAS OF SHALLOW FLOODING (ZONE AO).
	Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article 3, Section B, are areas designated as shallow flooding areas.  These areas have special flood hazards associated with base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) feet where a clearly d...
	(1)  The reference level shall be elevated at least as high as the depth number specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), in feet, plus a freeboard of two (2 ) feet, above the highest adjacent grade; or at least four (4) feet above the highest...
	(2) Non-residential structures may, in lieu of elevation, be floodproofed to the same level as required in Article 5, Section G(1) so that the structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, below that level shall be watertight wit...
	(3) Adequate drainage paths shall be provided around structures on slopes, to guide floodwaters around and away from proposed structures.


	ARTICLE 6. LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS.
	SECTION A. EFFECT ON RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES UNDER THE EXISTING FLOOD DAMAGE
	PREVENTION ORDINANCE.
	SECTION B. EFFECT UPON OUTSTANDING FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMITS.
	SECTION D. EFFECTIVE DATE.
	SECTION E. ADOPTION CERTIFICATION.


	ADP24F2.tmp
	SECTION D. UOBJECTIVES.
	(1) protect human life, safety, and health;
	(2) minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;
	(3) minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;
	(4) minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions;
	(5) minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and gas mains, electric, telephone, cable and sewer lines, streets, and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas;
	(8) help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood prone areas; and
	(9) ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a Special Flood Hazard Area.
	(3) Certification Requirements.
	(b) Floodproofing Certificate
	(i) If non-residential floodproofing is used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65), with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan are required ...
	(a) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair...
	(b) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building or structure;
	(c) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage; and
	(d) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction requirements of the NC Building Code and this ordinance is required.


	SECTION A. GENERAL STANDARDS.
	(8) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a structure, which is in compliance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall meet the requirements of “new construction” as contained in this ordinance.

	SECTION B. SPECIFIC STANDARDS.
	(9) Tanks.  When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:
	(a) Underground tanks.  Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoy...
	(b) Above-ground tanks, elevated.  Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be elevated to or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation on a supporting structure that is designed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement during co...
	(c) Above-ground tanks, not elevated.  Above-ground tanks that do not meet the elevation requirements of Article 5, Section B (2) of this Article shall be permitted in flood hazard areas provided the tanks are designed, constructed, installed, and anc...
	(d) Tank inlets and vents.  Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be:
	(i) At or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the design flood; and
	(ii) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood.


	(10) Other Development.
	(b) Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways and NEAs.  Retaining walls and sidewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance.



	ADP13AA.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance – Proposed Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC311.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: F & A Construction – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	F&A Const Rezoning Application.pdf
	2020-08-06 - Revised Rezoning Application.pdf
	OWNERSHIP INFORMATION:
	PROPERTY INFORMATION
	ZONING REQUEST
	OWNER/AGENT STATEMENT
	NOTE: AGENTS ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE PROPERTY OWNER MUST HAVE A NOTARIZED STATEMENT FROM THE PROPERTY OWNER GIVING THEM THE AUTHORITY TO ACT ON THE OWNER’S BEHALF.


	ADP70D2.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial):
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPFFE0.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: R. E. Davenport Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 05590)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF4D0.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage:
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial):
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP1EAB.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: David Evans Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4D52.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: David Evans Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPED04.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPA063.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 160D of the NC GS
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPFD36.tmp
	Section 1.2 Authority
	Section 12.2 Proceedings of the Zoning Board of Adjustment
	Section 13.5 Town Council Action
	Section 14.4 Zoning Compliance Certificate With Vested Rights
	Section 4.2 Overlay Zoning Districts Established:  Purposes Set Forth
	Section 4.3 Conditional Use Districts Zoning Established:  Purposes Set Forth
	Section 4.3.1. Conditional Use District with a Site Specific Development Plan
	Section 4.6 Determining Permitted and Conditional Special Uses, Principal Uses and Mixed Uses
	Section 5.2 Agricultural-Residential District (AR)
	Section 5.3 R-20 Residential District
	Section 5.4 R-15 Residential District
	Section 5.4.A  R-12.5 Residential District
	Section 5.5 R-10 Residential District
	Section 5.6 R-8 Residential District
	Section 5.7 R-6 Residential District
	Section 5.8 Multi-Family Residential District (MR)
	Section 5.9 Office and Institutional District (OI)
	Section 5.10 Central Business District (CB)
	Section 5.11 General Business District
	Section 5.11.A Intermediate Commercial District
	Section 5.12 Neighborhood Commercial (CN)
	Section 5.13 Industrial District (I)
	Section 5.15 Conditional Use District
	ARTICLE VI.  TABLE OF PERMITTED AND CONDITIONAL  SPECIAL USES
	Section 6.2 Entries
	Section 6.3 Meaning of Entries
	*******        Changed Heading:  TABLE OF PERMITTED & CONDITIONAL SPECIAL USES   *******
	Section 6.4 Table of Permitted and Conditional Special Uses. (See Table)  ((((REPLACED “C” WITH “S” IN TABLE))))
	SR 8. Planned Unit Development
	SR 37. Wireless Telecommunication Towers and Facilities
	Section 12.5 Powers and Duties of the Board of Adjustment
	ARTICLE XIII.  AMENDMENT PROCEDURES; CONDITIONAL USE DISTRICTS
	Section 13.2 Amendment Initiation
	Section 13.3 Submittal
	Section 13.5 Town Council Action
	Section 13.6 Protest Petition
	Section 13.7 Special Provisions for Conditional Use Districts and Conditional Use Permits
	Section 14.4 Zoning Compliance Certificate With Vested Rights
	Section 15.3 Effects Upon Outstanding Building Permits, Zoning Compliance Permits and Conditional  Special Use Permits
	Section 15.4 Definitions
	Section 15.4 Definitions
	Section 15.4A Conflicts of Interest (G.S. 160D-1-9)
	a) Governing Board. – A governing board member shall not vote on any legislative decision regarding a development regulation adopted pursuant to G.S. 160D where the outcome of the matter being considered is reasonably likely to have a direct, substant...
	b) Appointed Boards. – Members of appointed boards shall not vote on any advisory or legislative decision regarding a development regulation adopted pursuant to G.S. 160D where the outcome of the matter being considered is reasonably likely to have a ...
	c) Administrative Staff. – No staff member shall make a final decision on an administrative decision required by G.S. 160D if the outcome of that decision would have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable financial impact on the staff member ...
	d) Quasi-Judicial Decisions. – A member of any board exercising quasi-judicial functions pursuant to G.S. 160D shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would violate affected persons' constitutional rights to an i...
	e) Resolution of Objection. – If an objection is raised to a board member's participation at or prior to the hearing or vote on a particular matter and that member does not recuse himself or herself, the remaining members of the board shall by majorit...
	f) Familial Relationship. – For purposes of this section, a "close familial relationship" means a spouse, parent, child, brother, sister, grandparent, or grandchild. The term includes the step, half, and in-law relationships.
	** Must prohibit third-party down-zonings; may process local government–initiated down-zonings (S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.)
	Section 13.2 Amendment Initiation
	Section 13.3 Submittal

	ADPC844.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7AFC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase Two – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP65C5.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4201.tmp
	SR 21. Mini-Warehouse/Self-Storage Units
	Section 14.2 Zoning Compliance Certificates; Building Permits; Certificates of Occupancy Required
	SR 23. ABC Sales for On Premises Consumption; Bars

	ADP7ABC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD89A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Kenneth Smith Property (Brookstone, Phase 2) – Rezoning Request (Parcel 70650)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPE619.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP2003.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Carroll Crossing, Section 3 – Rezoning Request (Parcel 04819)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP95C9.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPB0DC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Ange Plaza, Lots 14 & 15 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD83D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA08D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Holly Grove, Section 2 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation





